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May 13, 2024 

 
Honorable Michael Cinquanti, Mayor  
Members of the Common Council  
City of Amsterdam 
City Hall, 61 Church Street 
Amsterdam, NY 12010  
 
Report Number: B24-5-5 
 
Dear Mayor Cinquanti and Members of the Common Council: 
 
Chapter 531 of the Laws of 2019 authorized the City of Amsterdam (City) to issue debt not to 
exceed $8.3 million to liquidate the cumulative deficits in the City’s general, transportation, sewer 
and recreation funds accumulated as of June 30, 2018. Additionally, Chapter 531 requires the City 
to submit to the State Comptroller, starting with the fiscal year during which it was authorized to 
issue the deficit obligations, and for each subsequent fiscal year during which the deficit 
obligations are outstanding, its proposed budget for the next succeeding fiscal year. 
 
The proposed budget must be submitted no later than 30 days before the last date on which the 
budget must be finally adopted by the Common Council (Council). The State Comptroller must 
examine the proposed budget and make recommendations on the proposed budget as deemed 
appropriate. Recommendations, if any, are made after the examination of the City’s revenue and 
expenditure estimates. 
 
The Council, no later than five days prior to the adoption of the budget, must review all 
recommendations made by the State Comptroller and may make adjustments to its proposed 
budget consistent with those recommendations contained in this report. All recommendations that 
the Council rejects must be explained in writing to our Office. The City may not issue bonds unless 
and until adjustments to the proposed budget consistent with any recommendations of the State 
Comptroller are made, or any recommendations that are rejected have been explained in writing 
to the State Comptroller. 
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operations throughout 2024-25 and also continue to evaluate and explore ways to make the 
recreation fund self-sufficient. 
 
Appropriations 
 
Social Security and Medicare Taxes – The City’s share of the Social Security tax is 6.2 percent of 
wages up to $168,600 for each individual employee for 2024 and is 1.45 percent of wages for the 
Medicare tax, or generally a combined 7.65 percent of all wages. The proposed budget includes 
total appropriations of $967,816 for Social Security and Medicare taxes. However, the Controller 
did not use the total budgeted appropriations for personal services of $13,512,287 when calculating 
the estimate for Social Security and Medicare taxes. The total budgeted appropriations for personal 
services multiplied by 7.65 percent is $1,033,690. As a result, we project that Social Security and 
Medicare taxes have been underestimated by $65,874.  
 
City officials should ensure budgeted appropriations for Social Security and Medicare taxes are 
based on all payroll payments projected to be made by the City. City officials should review these 
appropriations and make modifications as necessary.  

Allocation of Appropriations – The City historically has allocated certain appropriations for 
personal services, contractual expenditures and employee benefits between the operating funds 
using various allocation methods. Instead of including all of the allocated appropriations in each 
operating fund as historically has been done, for most of the allocations the proposed budget now 
also includes appropriations for the total projected expenditures in the general fund and budgeted 
interfund transfers from the other operating funds to the general fund for their corresponding 
allocation.2 
 
However, City officials could not provide us with support for all of the allocation methods, such 
as the direct relationship between the services to be provided to the funds and the allocations to 
them. This continues even though our four previous budget review letters recommended that City 
officials should develop an allocation plan based on detailed analysis. 
 
Due to the City’s lack of detailed analysis for determining the actual amount and cost of services 
provided to each fund, we could not determine the amount of appropriations that should have been 
allocated to each fund. In addition, we question the equity of some of the City’s allocations in the 
proposed budget.  
 
For example, the proposed budget includes appropriations for personal services for 13 of the City’s 
departments3 totaling approximately $1.9 million in the general fund and interfund transfers from 
the water, sewer and refuse funds to the general fund for their corresponding allocation of these 
appropriations. The Controller allocated these appropriations between the general, water, sewer 

 
2 The proposed budget includes interfund transfers to the general fund for this purpose of $2,231,866 in the water 
fund, $1,974,483 in the sewer fund, $1,061,731 in the refuse fund and $39,167 in the recreation fund or a combined 
total of $5,307,247. 
3 The 13 departments include the Council, Mayor's office, Controller's office, Assessor's office, City Clerk's office, 
Corporation Counsel, Civil Service, Employee Relations, City Hall maintenance, Information Technology, Code 
Enforcement office, Engineer's office and Community and Economic Development office. 
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and refuse funds in allocations of 30 percent, 27.5 percent, 27.5 percent and 15 percent, 
respectively. The allocations consist of approximately $582,000 to the general fund, $533,000 to 
both the water and sewer funds and $291,000 to the refuse fund. 

City officials told us this is done to allocate administrative costs between the funds. However, this 
is not an adequate method of allocation because it assumes that each of these 13 departments will 
provide the same proportionate amounts of services to the funds. 

Contractual appropriations for the same 13 departments totaling more than $500,000 are allocated 
in the proposed budget in the same manner. In addition, other miscellaneous contractual 
appropriations (e.g., liability insurance) totaling approximately $800,000 are also allocated in the 
proposed budget in the same manner. The allocations of the contractual appropriations totaling 
more than $1.3 million consist of approximately $391,000 to the general fund, $358,000 to both 
the water and sewer funds and $195,000 to the refuse fund. The proposed budget includes these 
appropriations in the general fund and interfund transfers from the water, sewer and refuse funds 
to the general fund for their corresponding allocation of these appropriations.  

Appropriations for personal services for 23 employees in the Department of Public Works totaling 
more than $1.2 million are also allocated in the proposed budget between the general, water, sewer 
and/or refuse funds in various percentages due to these employees performing work for multiple 
funds. The allocations consist of approximately $586,000 to the general fund, $242,000 to the 
water fund, $284,000 to the sewer fund and $135,000 to the refuse fund. However, City officials 
do not maintain records of the actual work performed by these employees to support these 
allocations. 

Appropriations for certain employee benefits (e.g., Social Security and Medicare taxes, New York 
State and Local Employees’ Retirement System contributions and health insurance) are allocated 
to the operating funds based on allocation calculations that factor in each fund’s number of full-
time equivalent employees.4 However, we question the correlation between each fund’s number 
of full-time equivalent employees and the corresponding proportionate share of expenditures that 
will be incurred by the City for certain employee benefits. For example, the City’s share of Social 
Security and Medicare taxes will be based on the actual wages paid to employees and will not be 
equivalent for each full-time employee.  

Without allocation methods that are supported, certain funds may assume an inequitable burden 
for costs that do not apply to their operations. This could result in taxpayers or ratepayers being 
inequitably charged for the actual services provided by each fund. City officials should develop an 
allocation plan based on detailed analysis that ensures costs allocated to each fund are directly 
related to its operations. 

4 The proposed budget includes appropriations for the total projected expenditures for Social Security and Medicare 
taxes and health insurance in the general fund and budgeted interfund transfers from the other funds to the general 
fund for their corresponding allocation. 






